

THOMAS EDISON STATE UNIVERSITY

FY 2020 INSTITUTIONAL PROFILE REPORT

Submitted to:

New Jersey Higher Education

Prepared by:

Thomas Edison State University Trenton, New Jersey

September 18, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INSTITUTIONAL PROFILE SUMMARY	i
THOMAS EDISON STATE UNIVERSITY'S MISSION & PURPOSE.	ii
A. ACCREDITATION STATUS	1
Institutional accreditation	1
B. NUMBER OF STUDENTS SERVED	2
2. Number of graduate students by attendance status.3. Number of noncredit students served.	2 2 2
C. CHARACTERISTICS OF UNDERGRADUATE STUDENTS	3
 Enrollment in remediation courses by subject area. Race/ethnicity, gender, and age (separately). Numbers of students receiving financial assistance under each federal-, state- & institution-funded aid program. 	3 3 4 5
D. STUDENT OUTCOMES	6
 Graduation rates by race/ethnicity category (Four-, five- and six-year graduation rate) Third-semester retention rates (by attendance status) Time-to-degree completion Student Learning Outcomes 	6 6 7
E. MENTOR CHARACTERISTICS	9
 Full-time faculty by race/ethnicity, gender, academic rank and tenure status (simultaneously) Percentage of course sections taught by full-time faculty Ratio of full- to part-time faculty Mentor characteristics: race/ethnicity and gender 	9 9 9

F. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES	10
 Race/ethnicity and gender (simultaneously). List of trustees/governors with titles and affiliations. URL Information. 	10 10 10
G. A PROFILE OF THE INSTITUTION	11
1. Degree and certificate programs	11 12
H. MAJOR RESEARCH AND PUBLIC SERVICE ACTIVITIES	13
I. MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS UNDERWAY IN FISCAL 2018	15
OTHER INSTITUTIONAL INFORMATION	16



THOMAS EDISON STATE UNIVERSITY FY 2020 INSTITUTIONAL PROFILE REPORT

INSTITUTIONAL PROFILE SUMMARY

Established in 1972, Thomas Edison State University provides distinctive undergraduate and graduate education for self-directed adults through flexible, high-quality collegiate learning and assessment opportunities. The University is one of New Jersey's senior public institutions of higher education and was granted university status by the New Jersey Secretary of Higher Education in December 2015. Thomas Edison State University is the only university in New Jersey dedicated exclusively for adults and offers degree programs at the associate, bachelor's, master's and doctoral level as well as undergraduate and graduate certificates.

For nearly five decades, the University has pioneered the use of the latest technologies to develop high-quality educational programs for adults and has served as a national leader in the assessment of adult learning. *The New York Times* called Thomas Edison State University "the college that paved the way for flexibility."

The entire academic program at the University revolves around the unique needs of adults. Students earn credit through a variety of methods designed exclusively for adult learners, including online courses, guided independent study, examination programs and professional and/or military training. Adult learners also earn credit by demonstrating college-level knowledge acquired outside a traditional classroom and by transferring credits earned from other regionally accredited institutions. Thomas Edison State University makes it possible for adult students to pursue their education without sacrificing their personal or professional responsibilities.

Merodie A. Hancock, PhD

President

MISSION and PURPOSE

Mission

Thomas Edison State University provides distinctive undergraduate and graduate education for self-directed adults through flexible, high-quality collegiate learning and assessment opportunities.

Purpose

Thomas Edison State University was established as Edison College in 1972 by the State of New Jersey and chartered by the New Jersey Board of Higher Education. The University was founded for the purpose of providing diverse and alternative methods of achieving a collegiate education of the highest quality for mature adults. To this end, the University seeks:

- I. To provide curricula and degree opportunities of appropriate level and composition consistent with the aspirations of our students, the public welfare, and the highest qualitative standards of American higher education.
- II. To create a system of college-level learning opportunities for adults by organizing collegiate and sponsored non-collegiate instruction into coherent degree strategies.
- III. To make available educationally valid learning opportunities which serve as alternatives to college classroom study and which are appropriate to the varied needs and learning styles of adults.
- IV. To develop and implement processes for the valid and reliable assessment of experiential and extra-collegiate college-level learning, and to provide appropriate academic recognition for knowledge so identified consistent with high standards of quality and rigor.
- V. To serve higher education and the public interest as a center of innovation, information, policy formulation and advocacy on behalf of adult learners.
- VI. To fulfill the public service obligation inherent to American institutions of higher education.
- VII. To conduct its affairs in a manner which acknowledges the maturity, autonomy, and dignity of its students; assures a portal of access to higher education for adult learners; and celebrates the values, diversity and high qualitative standards of American higher education.

A. ACCREDITATION STATUS

- 1. Institutional accreditation. Thomas Edison State University is regionally accredited by the Middle States Commission on Higher Education, the accrediting body for colleges and universities in the middle states region. This accreditation is part of a national system of quality assurance that requires colleges and universities to reach a common understanding and agreement as to the standards of quality for American higher education. During FY 2018, the MSCHE accepted the University's Periodic Review Report (PRR) and reaffirmed the University's accreditation through 2022.
- 2. Professional accreditation. The W. Cary Edwards School of Nursing's baccalaureate degree program in nursing, master's degree program in nursing, and doctor of nursing practice program are accredited by the Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (CCNE). The baccalaureate and master's degree accreditation with CCNE is valid through 2024. The doctor of nursing practice program through CCNE is valid through 2023. The W. Cary Edwards School of Nursing's baccalaureate degree program in nursing is accredited by the New Jersey Board of Nursing through 2022.

Thomas Edison State University's Master of Arts in Educational Leadership Program, which is designed to prepare educators for roles in school leadership, was awarded Teacher Education Accreditation Council (TEAC) accreditation by the Inquiry Brief Commission of the Council for the Accreditation of Educator Preparation (CAEP) for a period of seven years, from April 2015 through April 2022. This accreditation certifies that the forenamed professional education program has provided evidence that the program adheres to TEAC's quality principles.

Thomas Edison State University's Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, Master of Business Administration, Master of Science in Management, and Master of Science in Human Resources Management degree programs are accredited by the Accreditation Council for Business Schools and Programs (ACBSP). The accreditation status is effective as of April 27, 2017.

Thomas Edison State University bachelor's degrees in Nuclear Energy Engineering Technology and Electronics System Engineering Technology are accredited by the Engineering Technology Accreditation Commission of the Accreditation Board for Engineering and Technology (ABET). The accreditation status is effective until August 2023. ABET is a specialized accrediting agency recognized by the Council for Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA).

Thomas Edison State University's associate degree program and undergraduate certificate in Polysomnography were awarded continuing accreditation by the Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs (CAAHEP) for a period of ten years, from March 17, 2017 to 2022.

B. NUMBER OF STUDENTS SERVED

1. Number of undergraduates by attendance status

Thomas Edison State University Table II.B.1:

Undergraduate Enrollment by Attendance Status, Fall FY 2019

	Full-Time	Part-Time	Total
Number	69	9,475	9,544
Percent	0.7%	99.3%	100%

Source: IPEDS Fall Enrollment Survey

Please note, Thomas Edison State University's Fall 2019 IPEDS Enrollment Survey counts are based on only the enrollment counts as of October. Prior to 2015, the Fall Enrollment Survey counts included all students who enrolled during the fiscal year.

2. Number of graduate students by attendance status

Thomas Edison State University Table II.B.2:

Graduate Enrollment by Attendance Status, Fall FY 2019

	Full-Time	Part-Time	Total
Number	28	655	683
Percent	4.1%	95.9%	100%

Source: IPEDS Fall Enrollment Survey

Please note, Thomas Edison State University's Fall 2019 IPEDS Enrollment Survey counts are based on only the enrollment counts as of October. Prior to 2015, the Fall Enrollment Survey counts included all students who enrolled during the fiscal year.

- 3. Number of noncredit students served. During FY 2020, there were 64 students who took noncredit courses at the University.
- 4. Unduplicated count of students enrolled during the year. During FY 2019, there were 14,345 students enrolled at the University.

C. CHARACTERISTICS OF UNDERGRADUATE STUDENTS

- 1. Mean math, reading, and writing SAT scores. This section is not applicable to Thomas Edison State University.
- 2. Enrollment in remediation courses by subject area. This section is not applicable to Thomas Edison State University.
- 3. Race/ethnicity, gender, and age (separately). Profiles of the undergraduate students by race/ethnicity, gender, and age are presented in the tables below.

Thomas Edison State University
Table II.C.3.a:
Undergraduate Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity, Fall FY 2019

	Full-time		Part-time		Total	
Race/Ethnicity	N	%	N	%	N	%
White	34	49.3%	4,761	50.2%	4,795	50.24%
Black	6	8.7%	1,271	13.4%	1,277	13.38%
Hispanic	3	4.3%	1,139	12.0%	1,142	11.97%
Asian*	11	15.9%	477	5.0%	488	5.11%
American Indian			40	0.4%	40	0.42%
Alien	1	1.4%	100	1.1%	101	1.06%
Race Unknown*	14	20.3%	1,687	17.8%	1,701	17.82%
Total	69	100.0%	9,475	100.0%	9,544	100.00%

^{*} Note: Asian includes Pacific Islanders and Unknown includes 2 or More Races.

Source: IPEDS Fall Enrollment Survey

Please note, Thomas Edison State University's Fall 2019 IPEDS Enrollment Survey counts are based on only the enrollment counts as of October. Prior to 2015, the Fall Enrollment Survey counts included all students who enrolled during the fiscal year.

Thomas Edison State University
Table II.C.3.b:
Undergraduate Enrollment by Gender, Fall FY 2019

	Ful	Full-time Part-ti		rt-time Total		'otal
Gender	N	%	N	%	N	%
Male	9	13.0%	5,649	59.6%	5,658	59.3%
Female	60	87.0%	3,826	40.4%	3,886	40.7%
Total	69	100.0%	9,475	100.0%	9,544	100.0%

Source: IPEDS Fall Enrollment Survey

Please note, Thomas Edison State University's Fall 2019 IPEDS Enrollment Survey counts are based on only the enrollment counts as of October. Prior to 2015, the Fall Enrollment Survey counts included all students who enrolled during the fiscal year.

Thomas Edison State University Table II.C.3.c:

Undergraduate Enrollment by Age, Fall FY 2019

	Full-		Part-time		Tota	al
Age	N	%	N	%	N	%
LT 18	0	0.0%	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
18-19	0	0.0%	44	0.5%	44	0.5%
20-21	1	1.4%	257	2.7%	258	2.7%
22-24	17	24.6%	899	9.5%	916	9.6%
25-29	27	39.1%	1,967	20.8%	1,994	20.9%
30-34	12	17.4%	1,983	20.9%	1,995	20.9%
35-39	5	7.2%	1,612	17.0%	1,617	16.9%
40-49	4	5.8%	1,828	19.3%	1,832	19.2%
50-64	3	4.3%	840	8.9%	843	8.8%
65+	0	0.0%	41	0.4%	41	0.4%
Unknown	0	0.0%	4	0.0%	4	0.0%
Total	69	100.0%	9,475	100.0%	9,544	100.0%

Source: IPEDS Fall Enrollment Survey. Please note, Thomas Edison State University's Fall 2019 IPEDS Enrollment Survey counts are based on only the enrollment counts as of October. Prior to 2015, the Fall Enrollment Survey counts included all students who enrolled during the fiscal year.

4. Number of students receiving financial assistance under each federal-, state-, and institution-funded aid program. The number of students receiving financial assistance is presented in the table below.

Thomas Edison State University Table II.C.4:

Financial Aid from Federal, State & Institution-Funded Programs, AY 2018-19

	Recipients	Dollars(\$)	\$/Recipient
FEDERAL PROGRAMS			
Pell Grants	1,670	3,875,000	2,320.36
University Work Study			-
Perkins Loans			-
SEOG			-
PLUS Loans	4	52,000	13,000.00
Stafford Loans (Subsidized)	1,536	5,259,000	3,423.83
Stafford Loans (Unsubsidized)	1,781	9,972,000	5,599.10
SMART & ACG or other			-
STATE PROGRAMS			
Tuition Aid Grants (TAG)	45	110,000	2,444.44
Educational Opportunity Fund (EOF)			-
Outstanding Scholars (OSRP)			-
Distinguished Scholars			-
Urban Scholars			-
NJ STARS	1	3,000	3,000.00
NJCLASS Loans	2	41,000	20,500.00
INSTITUTIONAL PROGRAMS			
Grants/Scholarships	38	15,000	394.74
Loans			-

Source: NJIPEDS Form #41 Student Financial Aid Report

Thomas Edison State University

5. Percentage of students who are New Jersey Residents. Due to the number of active military students enrolled, the University examines residence by military status. As the table below indicates, among nonmilitary students, 50 percent of the enrolled students were New Jersey residents. Six percent of the military students were also N.J. residents.

Thomas Edison State University
Table II.C.5:
FY 2019 Enrollment by Military Status and Residence

_	Non-Military		Active Military		Total	
Residence	N	%	N	%	N	%
New Jersey	5,200	50.3%	247	6.2%	5,447	38.0%
Out of State	4,939	47.8%	3,669	91.4%	8,608	60.0%
International	102	1.0%	10	0.2%	112	0.8%
Unknown	91	0.9%	87	2.2%	178	1.2%
Total	10,332	100.0%	4,013	100.0%	14,345	100.0%

Source: Thomas Edison State University, FY 2019 President's Annual Report to the Board of Trustees.

D. STUDENT OUTCOMES

1. Graduation rates:

- a. Four-, five-, and six-year graduation rate by race/ethnicity (senior publics). This section is not applicable to Thomas Edison State University.
- b. Two-year graduation rate (community colleges). This section is not applicable to Thomas Edison State University.
- c. Three-year graduation and transfer rate by race/ethnicity (community colleges). This section is not applicable to Thomas Edison State University.
- 2. Third-semester retention rates (by attendance status). This section is not applicable to Thomas Edison State University.
- 3. Time-to-Degree Completion. Since Thomas Edison State University enrolls primarily adult students who often bring in credit upon enrollment, the University monitors time-to-degree completion to examine how long it takes graduates to earn a degree from the University.

As presented in Table II.D:3a below, during FY 2020, the associate degree graduates took, on average, 3.8 years to graduate, the bachelor's degree graduates took 4.3 years to graduate, the master's degree graduates took 3.2 years to graduate, and the doctoral degree graduates took 2.0 years to graduate.

Thomas Edison State University
Table II.D.3.a:
FY 2020 Graduates Time-to-Degree Completion by Degree Level

	Associate	Baccalaureate	Master's	Doctorate
Overall	3.8	4.3	3.2	2.0

Source: Thomas Edison State University, FY 2020 Year End Data File: Degrees Awarded.

The University also monitors time-to-degree completion by examining differences between instate and out-of-state students. The time-to-degree completion for in-state versus out-of-state students is presented below.

Thomas Edison State University
Table II.D.3.b:
FY 2020 Graduates Time-to-Degree Completion by Degree Level and Residence

	Associate	Baccalaureate	Master's	Doctorate
NJ Residents	4.1	4.6	3.4	2.1
Out-of-State Residents	3.8	4.3	2.7	1.8

Source: Thomas Edison State University, FY 2020 Year End Data File: Degrees Awarded.

Student Learning Outcomes. In keeping with its mission, Thomas Edison State University is committed to maintaining high standards of academic integrity and of quality service to its students. To achieve this goal, the University engages in outcomes assessment, a process through which the effectiveness of the University and its programs is evaluated against institutionally determined standards. Thomas Edison State University's institutional outcomes are closely mapped to the Essential Learning Outcomes of the Liberal Education and America's Promise (LEAP) initiative as documented by the Association of American Colleges and Universities. The Academic Council has approved specific institutional learning outcomes for all undergraduate students and graduate students.

a. Undergraduate Institutional Learning Outcomes

All Thomas Edison State University students who graduate from bachelor's degree programs will have the following competencies:

- Written Communication
 - Communicate ideas effectively in writing using text, data and images for addressing globally complex challenges.
- Oral Communication
 - Communicate ideas effectively orally using multiple modes of communication, as appropriate.
- Information Literacy
 - Identify, locate, evaluate and effectively and responsibly use and share information for the problem at hand.
- Quantitative Reasoning/Literacy
 - Demonstrate competency and comfort in working with numerical data, create complex and refined arguments supported by quantitative evidence, and clearly communicate those arguments in a variety of formats, as appropriate.
- Diversity/Intercultural Literacy
 - Recognize that they are members of a world community and demonstrate intercultural knowledge, skills and attitudes that support effective and appropriate interaction in a variety of cultural contexts.
- Ethical Leadership
 - Assess their own ethical values and the social context of a given situation, recognize ethical issues in a variety of settings, apply ethical principles to ethical dilemmas, and consider the ramifications of alternative actions.
- Critical Thinking
 - Critically explore issues and ideas, frame events, consider evidence and analyze assumptions before accepting or formulating an opinion or conclusion.

b. Institutional Graduate Learning Outcomes

All Thomas Edison State University students who graduate from advanced-level degree programs will be able to:

Thomas Edison State University

- Apply in-depth knowledge to the major questions, theories, debates, and methodologies in their organization, field or profession.
- Use critical analysis and research to make informed decisions and to improve an organization, field, or profession.
- Communicate effectively to positively impact an organization, field, or profession.
- Apply ethical principles and theories in research, evaluation, organizational culture, and communities.
- Interpret cultural influences in organizations and communities.
- Create sophisticated arguments supported by quantitative evidence.

c. Programmatic Learning Outcomes

Programmatic learning outcomes, focusing on degree specific learning goals and objectives, have also been established within each school at the undergraduate and graduate degree levels.

E. MENTOR CHARACTERISTICS

- 1. Full-time faculty by race/ethnicity, gender, academic rank and tenure status (simultaneously). This section is not applicable to Thomas Edison State University.
- 2. Percentage of course sections taught by full-time faculty. This section is not applicable to Thomas Edison State University.
- 3. Ratio of full- to part-time faculty. This section is not applicable to Thomas Edison State University.
- 4. Mentor characteristics: race/ethnicity and gender. Thomas Edison State University signs letters-of-agreement with subject-matter experts. These mentors and consultants engage with the academic units of the University in various ways: development and/or assessment in test construction, portfolio assessment, facilitating courses (e.g., Guided Study and online), pre-graduation conferences, demonstration of currency, practicum, nursing performance examinations, and program evaluations. During FY 2020, there were 696 mentors. The gender and race/ethnicity of the mentors are presented below.

Thomas Edison State University
Table II.E.4.a:
Gender of Mentors, FY 2020

Gender		Total	%
Female		313	48%
Male		379	52%
Unknown		4	1%
	Total	696	100%

Thomas Edison State University
Table II.E.4.b:
Race/Ethnicity of Mentors, FY 2020

Race/Ethnicity	Total	%
American Indian/Alaskan Nativ	re 7	1%
Asian	48	7%
Asian/Pacific Islander	2	0%
Black/African American	67	10%
Hawaiian/Pacific Islander	1	0%
Hispanic/Latino	10	1%
White	552	79%
Other	9	1%
To	tal 696	100%

F. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

The Board of Trustees is the premier governing body of the University. The members are appointed by the governor with the advice and consent of the Senate. Members of the Board bring with them diverse experiences and varied backgrounds from business, industry, and academia. The Board oversees all policy matters of the University, including the approval of degree programs and standards, budget recommendations to the governor, and appointments of all University employees. There are two student members on the Board: one a voting member and the other an alternate.

1. Race/Ethnicity and Gender (simultaneously). A profile of the Board of Trustees by race/ethnicity and gender is presented in the table below.

Thomas Edison State University
Table II.F.1
Race/Ethnicity and Gender of the Board of Trustees, FY 2021

Gender				
Race/Ethnicity	Male	Female	Total	
White	3	2	5	
Black	2	2	4	
Hispanic	1	-	1	
Asian	1	-	1	
American Indian	-	-	-	
Total	7	4	11	

2. Board of Trustee Members. The current Board of Trustee members are presented in the table below.

Thomas Edison State University
Table II.F.2
Board of Trustees, FY 2021

Name	Title	Affiliation
Dr. Kemi Alli (Chair)	CEO and Chief Medical Officer	Henry J. Austin Health Center
Richard W. Arndt	Retired	American Cancer Society
Franklin Clyburn	CEO, Global Oncology	Merck & Co., Inc.
Dr. Merodie A. Hancock (Exofficio)	President	Thomas Edison State University
Jennifer M. Hutchinson	Manager	ARI, a Holman Enterprise
Rev. J. Stanley Justice	Presiding Elder	Dover, Delaware Area AME Churches
Eric R. Lear	Managing Partner	Lear & Pannepacker, LLP
Brian T. Maloney	Consultant	
Gualberto Medina (Vice Chair)	Executive VP in Brokerage Services	CBRE
Marilyn R. Pearson	Philanthropic Consultant, VP	TPB Legacy Group
Sanket Shah	Student	Thomas Edison State University

3. URL Information. For information about the Thomas Edison State University Board of Directors, please go to: http://www.tesu.edu/about/Board-of-Trustees.cfm.

G. A PROFILE OF THE INSTITUTION

Degree and Certificate Programs

Undergraduate Degree Programs and Certificates. Thomas Edison State University offers six associate degrees and 11 bachelor's degrees (including three joint degree programs with Rutgers School of Health Related Professions). There are approximately 100 areas of study in the undergraduate degree programs.

The Associate Degree Programs are as follows: Associate in Applied Science, Associate in Arts, Associate in Arts in Human Services, Associate in Science, Associate in Science in Business Administration, and Associate in Science in Natural Sciences and Mathematics.

The Bachelor's Degree Programs include: Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of Science, Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, Bachelor of Science in Cybersecurity, Bachelor of Science in Human Services, Bachelor of Science in Nursing, Bachelor of Science in Organizational Leadership, and Bachelor of Science in Professional Studies. There are also several joint degree programs offered with the Rutgers School of Health Professions: Bachelor of Science in Health Information Management, Bachelor of Science in Health Sciences, and Bachelor of Science in Medical Imaging Sciences.

The University offers three types of Bachelor of Science in Nursing programs: RN to BSN, RN to BSN/MSN, and an Accelerated 2nd Degree BSN. The RN to BSN/MSN program provides a seamless transition for students enrolled in the Bachelor of Science in Nursing degree who want to earn a Master of Science in Nursing degree. The Accelerated 2nd Degree BSN program is an intensive one-year program for adults who already possess a non-nursing bachelor's degree and are interested in becoming a registered nurse.

The University also awards Certificates in the following professional areas: Accounting, Communications, Computer Information Systems, Computer Science, Criminal Justice, Cybersecurity, Diversity, Electronics, Finance, First Year Foundations, Health and Wellness, Healthcare Management, General Management, Gas Distribution, Human Resources Management, Labor Studies, Marketing, Operations Management, Organizational Leadership, Polysomnography, and Psychology.

Graduate Degree Programs and Certificates. The University currently offers sixteen master's degree programs and two doctoral programs (Doctor of Nursing Practice and Doctor of Business Administration). The master's degree programs are Master of Arts in Educational Leadership, Master of Arts in Educational Technology and Online Learning, Master of Arts in Liberal Studies, Master of Business Administration, Master of Public Service Leadership, Master of Science, Master of Science in Accounting, Master of Science in Cybersecurity, Master of Science in Data Science and Analytics, Master of Science in Healthcare Management, Master of Science in Homeland Security, Master of Science in Human Resources Management, Master of Science in Information Technology, Master of Science in Management, Master of Science in Management – Public Service Careers, and Master of Science in Nursing (MSN). Graduates of the MSN degree program earn a Nursing

Administration, Nurse Educator, or Nursing Informatics certificate, in addition to the MSN degree, depending on the area of study they select.

The Master of Business Administration is a 39-credit accelerated, online, and career-focused MBA degree that prepares individuals for leadership roles in firms and organizations. The entire program can be completed in 12-15 months. The Master of Public Service Leadership is a 36-credit program offered entirely online and meets the accelerating demand for education and careers in public service. The Master of Public Service Leadership has been developed in alignment with the National Association of Schools of Public Affairs and Administration (NASPAA) standards for accreditation.

The Doctor of Nursing Practice (DNP) degree, launched in FY 2017, prepares nurse leaders with competencies in advanced nursing practice, organizational leadership, economics and finance, healthcare policy and technology. It is a 36-credit program that can be completed online in 18 months.

The Doctor of Business Administration (DBA) degree, launched in FY 2020, is an online doctoral degree program with Areas of Study in Organizational Leadership, Human Resource Management and General Management. It is designed to enable business students and professionals to advance their careers as executive leaders, educators and consultants.

There are also 24 graduate Certificate programs offered: Clinical Trials Management, Counterterrorism, Cybersecurity, Cybersecurity – Critical Infrastructure, Data Analytics, Digital Humanities, Educational Leadership, Emergency Management, Fundraising and Development, Geropsychology, Healthcare Management, Homeland Security, Hospitality Management, Human Resources Management, Industrial-Organizational Psychology, International Business Finance, Nurse Educator, Nursing Administration, Nursing Informatics, Online Learning and Teaching, Organizational Leadership, Professional Communications, Project Management, and Strategic Planning and Board Leadership for Nonprofits.

There are also several Bachelor's to Master's degree programs available that enable undergraduate students to earn up to 12 graduate credits that apply to both their bachelor's degree and master's degree at the University.

More information about the degree programs offered by the University and the majors/ areas of study offered is available on the University website, http://www.tesu.edu/academics/index.cfm.

2. Other

Affiliation with New Jersey State Library. Legislation codifying in statute the affiliation of the New Jersey State Library with Thomas Edison State University was signed by the governor in FY 2001. This affiliation and other collaborative projects have made a significant positive difference to the New Jersey State Library and the other libraries with which it is connected.

H. MAJOR RESEARCH AND PUBLIC SERVICE ACTIVITIES

Thomas Edison State University engages in public service activities through the John S. Watson Institute for Public Policy, Division of Community and Government Affairs, as well as individual staff participation on various external boards, committees and organizations. In addition, the New Jersey State Library, an affiliate of Thomas Edison State University, contributes to the public service activities of the University (see "Other" section below). Highlights of some of the University's activities are provided below.

The John S. Watson Institute for Public Policy

The John S. Watson Institute for Public Policy provides assistance to decision makers in addressing key public policy issues. Through research and analysis, the Institute utilizes a practical, hands-on approach to broaden the range of ideas, perspectives, and options for city, county, and state stakeholders. The Institute comprises several integrated policy centers: Center for Civic Engagement and Leadership Development, Center for the Positive Development of Urban Children, Center for Health Policy Development, Center for Technical Assistance and Capacity Building, including Inter-Governmental Affairs, Center for the Urban Environment, and the Center for Education Policy and Practice Initiatives. The Institute also serves the New Jersey Urban Mayors Policy Center/Urban Mayors Policy Center in several ways, including holding conferences, meetings, workshops, municipal retreats, policy review and analysis.

During FY 2020, the Watson Institute staff were engaged in several community outreach activities as mentioned below.

New Jersey Urban Mayors Association. The Institute hosted a meeting for the New Jersey Urban Mayors Association (NJUMA) and the New Jersey Economic Development Authority (NJEDA) to discuss the NJEDA's new incentives and programs that are designed to assist cities and stimulate economic development in the state's urban centers.

Teacher Professional Development and Mentoring Services. Institute staff provided professional development and mentoring services to teachers in 13 classrooms in Trenton Public Schools from grades Kindergarten to high school. These services focused on helping teachers become more culturally and linguistically responsive to diverse students. The program transitioned from face-to-face mentoring to virtual support calls from April-June 2020 and served as a support to teachers as they navigated remote learning, students' needs, and their own resiliency during the COVID-19 quarantine.

Center for the Urban Environment. The Institute for the Center for the Urban Environment (CUE) made several dozen presentations about environmental justice throughout the year to various groups including environmental justice (EJ) organizations, the Historically Black Colleges and University (HBCU) Climate Change Conference, NJ Legislative groups, and at the U.S. Capitol.

City and Municipal Development. The Institute provided advice to and conducted research on behalf of the City of Trenton and guided the City with a comprehensive development of strategic plans for each city department leading to the creation of an overall strategic plan for the city. The

Thomas Edison State University

Institute also worked with several municipalities in updating their initiatives and provided guidance in seeking additional support from the US Department of Commerce before their CEDS designation expires in 2021.

For more information about the John S. Watson Institute for Public Policy and its Centers, visit http://www.tesc.edu/watson/institute/index.cfm.

The Division of Community and Government Affairs

Through the Office of Community and Government Affairs, the University staff participated in several community events.

During FY 2020, the Office of Community and Government Affairs played a critical role in creating the Chamber of Commerce of Southern New Jersey's Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Council and facilitated their inaugural event.

The University partnered with UIH Family Partners, the Burke Foundation and St Francis Medical Center, to host a Men's Summit. The Summit focused on men's educational attainment, mental and physical health needs, career development and financial stability. Over 85 men from the local community participated.

During FY 2020, TESU sponsored and hosted a Community Involvement Fair, which is open to the public and aimed at individuals looking to make a difference within the community. Over 40 organizations and more than 100 participants attended the event.

Additionally, the University co-sponsored the Chamber of Commerce of Southern New Jersey's the inaugural Women's Council event.

I. MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS UNDERWAY IN FY 2020

No major capital project conducted during FY 2020.

OTHER INSTITUTIONAL INFORMATION

University Selected Highlights

Thomas Edison State University (TESU) helped engage individuals in their communities, assisted military students, and provided scholarships to students in need.

CCME Professional Development Symposium. Representatives from TESU served on multiple panels and led discussions centered on improving educational resources for members of the military during the Council of College and Military Educators (CCME) Annual Professional Development Symposium in Philadelphia.

Support Our Troops Campaign. TESU held the Support Our Troops Campaign to support military students. During the campaign, University-wide collections resulted in hundreds of boxes of supplies and goodies being distributed to deployed student service members and their units.

Recovery Scholars Program. Through the TESU Foundation, the University was able to partner with the Ammon Foundation to provide scholarship opportunities for individuals in recovery from substance use disorder while pursuing an education. The program also provided scholarship recipients with academic, personal and professional support.

Student Emergency Relief Fund. The TESU Foundation established the Student Emergency Relief Fund to provide critical assistance to students with sudden financial needs.

Promote Experiential Learning. TESU received a grant to support New Jersey nonprofit organizations by promoting experiential learning in the form of 12-week Capstone projects.

NRC Scholarship. The University's School of Applied Science and Technology received scholarship funding from the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) to benefit qualifying students enrolled in nuclear power, nuclear safety and related engineering and technology programs. The funding supports the development of a workforce capable of supporting the design, construction, operation and regulation of nuclear facilities and the safe handling of nuclear materials.

New Jersey State Library Selected Highlights

Fresh Start @ Your Library program. Funded by the Institute of Museum and Library Services, the New Jersey State Library (NJSL) implemented the Fresh Start @ Your Library Program, which focused on reconnecting individuals returning to their home communities after completing their prison terms with their communities through their public libraries' support and services. When libraries closed to the public due to COVID-19, the program was transitioned to a virtual service model and is currently serving clients and building partnerships at each library location.

NJ/DE Digital Collective. NJSL continues its efforts in support of the Digital Public Library of America service hub development. With contributions from multiple organizations in New Jersey and Delaware, the project is expected to complete and upload the initial batch of metadata in the fall of 2020.

NJSL Cooperative Effort with NJDOE. Supported by the NJ Department of Education (NJDOE), NJSL provided student-focused electronic resources and delivered a joint public library card promotion campaign targeting middle school students.

Library Support During Covid-19. In response to the pandemic, the State Library Information Center (SLIC) and The Talking Book and Braille Center TBBC) continued to provide user services remotely. SLIC created tutorials to facilitate use of the library's website and resources, created several new research guides, such as: "2020 Census Resources for New Jersey Libraries" and "Coronavirus (COVID-19) Resources." TBBC transitioned their operations to a new circulation and duplication system that improved the delivery and production of books. In the Library Development area, NJSL provided on-line summer reading software to support local public library participation and activities and also provided numerous professional development programs for library staff throughout the state.